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Palmerton Celebrates 125 Years Since Its Founding
Allentown Symphony Concert to Mark This Event

July/October 2023

In 1826, as the first days of  July dawned, the lives 
of  two men – each a past President of  the United 
States – drew near to an end.   Each yearned to last 
just a few days longer – to July 4th - so they might 
witness the 50th anniversary of  the republic they 
had helped create.

John Adams of  Massachusetts and Thomas 
Jefferson of  Virginia played vital roles in the events 
that culminated in the Declaration 
of  Independence and, although 
they were political adversaries, they 
shared a deep admiration for each 
other.  This friendship grew even 
stronger after they left office.  It was 
only fitting that at midday on July 
4th, John Adams would think of  his 
friend and utter his dying words – 
“Jefferson still survives.”

There was no email, no telephone, no telegraph – 
so Adams could not have known that Jefferson had 
passed away five hours earlier, and although his 
dying words were not recorded it is likely his last 
thoughts were of  Adams.  What was so important to 
these two men that urged them to hold on for a few 

more days so  they could celebrate this anniversary 
with a small group of  family and friends?

It is important for individuals to remember events 
that have shaped a nation or a community and have 
had a profound effect on its future.  These events 
must be periodically revisited and the achievements 
passed on if  the sacrifices of  past generations are 
not to be lost.  On July 3rd, Palmerton will celebrate 

the 125th anniversary of  its 
founding. Although the significance 
of  this day may not match that 
of  the 250th anniversary of  the 
Declaration of  Independence, it is 
right that it be duly recognized.

On Sunday afternoon August 
27th, the Allentown Symphony 

Orchestra will perform a concert at the Palmerton 
High School that will feature easily recognizable 
classics and popular numbers by John Williams and 
others.  This will be the first time the orchestra has 
performed in Carbon County and almost assuredly 
it will be a sold-out performance. Details on ticket 
availability and sponsorships of  this memorable 
event are included on an enclosed slip sheet.
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2023 Monthly Program Schedule
all programs held in the Knight’s Gallery of  the Palmerton 

Library unless otherwise noted (handicap accessibility)

July 10 (6:30pm)
The Town That Zinc Built

David Taschler

August 14 (5-8pm)
Annual Picnic

Walnutport Canal Pavilion

August 18 (9am-3pm)
Sidewalk Sale  

Heritage Center

August 27 (2pm)
Allentown Symphony Concert 

at Palmerton High School Auditorium

September 9-10
Historic Bus Tours at

Palmerton Festival

October 9
Palmerton - Then & Now

Lynn Shupp

November 13
Palmerton Veterans Remembered

George Duell

December 3
Ecumenical Service (3pm)

at Little White Church
Annual Banquet (4:30pm)

at Bert’s Steakhouse



The Silver Anniversary year of  1923 was 
made memorable by the publication of  a well-
researched and documented history of  the 
area. The 178-page book provides a record 
spanning 300 years from the days of  William 
Penn.   It is further enhanced by more than 
130 advertisements from local businesses 
and organizations.  It  shows how in less 
than 25 years, Palmerton had grown from 
a few randomly placed farms to a thriving, 
professionally managed community.

Although Stephen Palmer would not live to 
celebrate this first of  many anniversaries, 
his foresight was obvious.  He, like many of  
his fellow investors, was a New Yorker who 
was witness to the challenges of  growth that 
accompanied the period of  immigration in the 
late 1800’s.   Thus, it was not surprising that by 
the Silver Anniversary there was a hospital with 
a link to Baltimore’s prestigious Johns Hopkins 
Hospital, an attendant school of  nursing,  a 
company-staffed sociological department to 
monitor and encourage health and hygiene, 
a dozen churches, and more than two dozen 
local schools.

In 1912, with a population of  6,000 citizens, 
Palmerton was formally incorporated as a 
borough. Its infrastructure was in constant 
development. In 1900, work was begun on a 
sewage disposal company that by 1923 would 
be processing 425,000 gallons per day. 

The Palmerton Lighting Company and the 
Palmerton Telephone Company also reflected 
the planned growth of  the community.  The 
demand for these services increased with 
the construction of  the iconic Horse Head 
Inn and by 1923 more than 600 homes and 
businesses were being connected to the rest of  
the country through the Bell Telephone Co 
and AT&T.  Services that are taken for granted 
100 years later were considered to be marvels 
of  technology in 1923.

Perhaps no other services had an impact on 
the early development of  Palmerton than 
those provided by the Palmer Land Company 
and the Palmer Water Company. Working in 
concert, they helped address the need for the 
new homes and together with local banks 
encouraged home ownership.

A summary cannot adequately relate 
the achievements of  those first 25 years. 
Independent businesses addressed needs from 
“hat cleaning” to “watch cleaning” and the 
local Justice of  the Peace could also provide 
you with all your life and fire insurance. A 
Citizens’ Cooperative was formed in 1907 that 
morphed into a “Board of  Trade” similar to 
today’s Chamber of  Commerce.  Not only did
 it assist local businesses it helped focus borough 
planners on issues of  housing, lighting, and 
street maintenance.

continued on next page

Palmerton 1898 -1923
The Growth of  the Community



Palmerton of  100 years ago was a source of  
pride to those who lived and worked here.  
The role of  The New Jersey Zinc Company 
during that period was one of  guidance rather 
than governance.  NJZ simply provided the 
road map.  The diverse groups that zealously 
protected their immigrant heritage worked 

together to forge a dynamic and prosperous 
community that would survive global wars and 
domestic financial depressions. These first 25 
years are an example of  what can be achieved 
through individual toil and effort and should be 
remembered in anniversaries to come.

Palmerton 1898 -1923
continued from previous page

Built in 1911 as a “common meeting place 
and clearing house for constructive community 
ideas,” it serves today as the offices of  the 
Borough of  Palmerton. The building originally 
included a gymnasium and auditorium, a 
library, a game and pool room (for men only), 
four bowling alleys in the lower level, and a 
club room, a well-equipped kitchen, and living 
quarters for resident staff on the upper floor.  
It was the expectation 
that this center “would 
make this community 
an ideal unit of  a great 
state and nation.”

The spacious area set 
aside for the library 
was initially provided 
with 1600 books 
through contributions 
and purchases – a number that soon grew to 
over 3500 volumes.  In addition, copies of  thirty 
magazines were provided through subscriptions.   
By early 1923, library enrollment had passed 
the 700 mark.

Not to be overlooked was the emphasis NJZ 
placed on employee health.  Room was set aside 
for the Company’s Sociological Staff whose 
Public Health Nurse schooled new parents 
in sanitary practices, pre-natal and infant 
care, and provided general health education 
programs.

The demand for gymnasium use and sports 
encouraged the 
creation a formal 
program under the 
supervision of  a 
Physical Education 
Director.  Regular 
classes were held 
in exercises and in 
training and coaching 
of  various sports. 
The concept of  a 

Neighborhood House was another example 
of  the innovative approach taken by The New 
Jersey Zinc Company during Palmerton’s 
formative years.  

The Palmerton Neighborhood House



THE FOLLOWING PAGES 
REPRINT MANY OF THE 

ADVERTISEMENTS
THAT WERE A PART OF THE 
1923 SILVER ANNIVERSARY 

PUBLICATION 

YOU ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
READ THEM FOR INSIGHT 

INTO PALMERTON 
100 YEARS AGO













































This 200-pound plaque was cast in the foundry of  the New Jersey Zinc Company at Palmerton to honor the  
company’s employees who served their country during the World War and in memory of  the employees who made 
the supreme sacrifice. The plaque was prominently displayed for many years in the Corporate Offices at Front Street 
in New York City. It is now a permanent fixture of  the Palmerton Area Heritage Center at 410 Delaware Avenue.  
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